
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 6 Gorffennaf 
2016
Amser: 11.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Gareth Williams
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddMCD@cynulliad.cymru

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datganiadau o fuddiant
 

2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys unrhyw faterion i’w codi o dan 
Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3

(Tudalennau 1 - 2) 
CLA(5)-03-16 – Papur 1 – Offerynnau statudol sydd ag adroddiadau clir 

3 Papurau i'w nodi
(Tudalennau 3 - 40) 

CLA(5)-03-16 - Papur 2 – Llythyr gan y Llywydd at y Cadeirydd ynglŷn â’i 
benodiad yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor, 30 Mehefin 2016.

CLA(5)-03-16 - Papur 3 – Llythyr gan y Llywydd at Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru 
ynglŷn â’i gwelliannau arfaethedig ar gyfer 5 Gorffennaf i Fil Cymru, 30 Mehefin 
2016.

CLA(5)-03-16 - Papur 4 – Llythyr gan y Llywydd at holl Aelodau Seneddol Cymru 
ynglŷn â gwelliannau arfaethedig i Fil Cymru, 30 Mehefin 2016.

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



CLA(5)-03-16 - Papur 5 – Briff y Llywydd ynglŷn â gwelliannau arfaethedig ar 
gyfer ystyriaeth diwrnod cyntaf Bil Cymru, 30 Mehefin 2016.

4 Tystiolaeth mewn perthynas â Bil Cymru
(Tudalennau 41 - 47) 

Elin Jones AC, Llywydd y Cynulliad
Adrian Crompton, Comisiwn y Cynulliad
Elisabeth Jones, Comisiwn y Cynulliad

CLA(5)-03-16 – Papur briffio gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes a ganlyn:

 
(vi) lle mae’r pwyllgor yn cyd-drafod cynnwys, casgliadau neu argymhellion 
adroddiad y mae’n bwriadu ei gyhoeddi, neu’n ymbaratoi i gael tystiolaeth gan 
unrhyw berson;
Trafod y Dystiolaeth

 



 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Offerynnau Statudol sydd ag Adroddiadau Clir 

6 Gorffennaf 2016 

 

SL(5)003 – Rheoliadau Cronfa'r Môr a Physgodfeydd Ewrop 

(Grantiau) (Cymru) 2016  

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn rhoi mecanwaith ar waith i ganiatáu i Weinidogion Cymru gyd-ariannu’r cymorth 

a roddir i'r sector pysgodfeydd a dyframaethu drwy gronfa newydd o’r enw Cronfa’r Môr a Physgodfeydd 

Ewrop, fel y maent yn gymwys i'r rhaglenni gweithredol a sefydlwyd o dan Reoliad (UE) Rhif 508/2014 . 

 

Yn ogystal â hyn, mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn dirymu ac yn disodli Rheoliadau Pysgodfeydd Ewrop (Grantiau) 

(Cymru) 2009 (OS / 2009/360  ( 'Rheoliadau 2009'). Maent yn cynnwys darpariaeth drosiannol er mwyn 

medru parhau i drin ceisiadau a dderbynnir gan Weinidogion Cymru cyn 31 Rhagfyr 2015 o dan delerau'r 

Rheoliadau 2009. 

  

Deddf Wreiddiol: Deddf y Cymunedau Ewropeaidd 1972 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: 22 Mehefin 2016 

Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 24 Mehefin 2016  

Yn dod i rym ar: 20 Gorffennaf 2016  

SL(5)005 - Rheoliadau Gwastraff (Ystyr Adfer) (Diwygiadau 

Amrywiol) (Cymru) 2016 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio offerynnau statudol penodol yn ymwneud â gwastraff, sy’n cyfeirio at 

Gyfarwyddeb 2008/98/EC Senedd Ewrop a’r Cyngor ar wastraff a diddymu Cyfarwyddebau penodol (OJ 

Rhif L 312, 22.11.2008, t.3) (“y Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Gwastraff”). 

 

Mae angen y diwygiadau a wneir gan y Rheoliadau hyn er mwyn gweithredu Cyfarwyddeb y Comisiwn 

(UE) 2015/1127 dyddiedig 10 Gorffennaf 2015 sy’n diwygio Atodiad II i’r Gyfarwyddeb Framwaith 

Gwastraff (OJ Rhif L 184, 11.7.2015, t.13). 

 

Deddf Wreiddiol: Deddf Atal a Rheoli Llygredd 1999; Deddf Gwastraff a Masnachu Allyriadau 2003, 

Gwastraff (Cymru) 2010; Deddf y Cymunedau Ewropeaidd 1972; 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: 28 Mehefin 2016 

Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 1 Gorffennaf 2016  

Yn dod i rym ar: 31 Gorffennaf 2016  

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



 

SL(5)006 – Gorchymyn Trwyddedu Morol (Gweithgareddau 

Esempt) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2016 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

Mae’r Gorchymyn hwn yn diwygio Gorchymyn Trwyddedu Morol (Gweithgareddau Esempt) (Cymru) 2011 

(“Gorchymyn 2011”), sy’n cynnwys cyfeiriad at Gyfarwyddeb 2008/98/EC Senedd Ewrop a’r Cyngor 

dyddiedig 19 Tachwedd 2008 ar wastraff a diddymu Cyfarwyddebau penodol (OJ L 312, 22.11.2008, t. 3.) 

(“y Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Gwastraff”).  

 

Mae angen y diwygiad a wneir gan erthygl 2 o’r Gorchymyn hwn er mwyn gweithredu diwygiadau i’r 

Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Gwastraff a wneir gan Gyfarwyddeb y Comisiwn (UE) 2015/1127 dyddiedig 10 

Gorffennaf 2015 sy’n diwygio Atodiad II i’r Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Gwastraff. 

 

Mae erthygl 2 o’r Gorchymyn hwn yn diwygio’r cyfeiriad at y Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Gwastraff yng 

Ngorchymyn 2011. 

 

Deddf Wreiddiol: Deddf y Cymunedau Ewropeaidd 1972 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: 28 Mehefin 2016 

Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 1 Gorffennaf 2016  

Yn dod i rym ar: 31 Gorffennaf 2016  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Huw Irranca Davies AC 

Cadeirydd 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 
 

 

 

Eich cyf: 

Ein cyf: 

 

 

30 Mehefin 2016 

 

 

Annwyl Huw 

Llongyfarchiadau ar gael eich penodi'n Gadeirydd pwyllgor. Drwy eich ethol i'r rôl 

hon, mae'r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol yn ymddiried ynoch i ymgymryd â 

chyfrifoldebau sylweddol. Ar ran Comisiwn y Cynulliad a'r Pwyllgor Busnes, rwy'n 

ysgrifennu atoch i egluro disgwyliadau'r Cynulliad a'r cymorth sydd ar gael i chi ac 

i aelodau eich pwyllgor. 

 

Mae pwyllgorau'r Cynulliad wrth wraidd y broses ddemocrataidd, ac mae 

cadeiryddion y pwyllgorau hynny yn chwarae rôl hanfodol yn eu llwyddiant o ran 

dwyn y Llywodraeth i gyfrif, gwneud cyfreithiau ac ymgysylltu'n uniongyrchol â 

phobl Cymru. Cefnogaf yn gryf y weledigaeth a nodwyd gan y Comisiwn a 

Phwyllgor Busnes y Pedwerydd Cynulliad: 

 

Dylai pwyllgorau'r Cynulliad ddangos eu bod yn gwella ansawdd 

canlyniadau polisi, deddfwriaeth, gwasanaethau cyhoeddus a gwariant gan y 

Llywodraeth i'r gymdeithas gyfan yng Nghymru. Dylent gael eu parchu a 

bod yn ddylanwadol a hygyrch, gan weithredu gyda gonestrwydd ac 

annibyniaeth. Dylai eu gwaith fod yn strategol a thrwyadl.  

 

Yn sail i'r weledigaeth hon y mae 10 o amcanion strategol, sydd wedi'u nodi yn yr 

Atodiad i'r llythyr hwn.  

Tudalen y pecyn 3

Eitem 3



 

 

Yn yr Atodiad hwnnw, rwyf hefyd wedi cynnwys rhestr o brif gyfrifoldebau 

Cadeirydd pwyllgor. Mae'r rhain wedi'u cymeradwyo gan y Pwyllgor Busnes. Maent 

hefyd yn sail i asesiad y Bwrdd Taliadau annibynnol o'r tâl ychwanegol y byddwch 

yn ei gael mewn perthynas â'r rôl. Felly, maent yn crynhoi'r disgwyliadau sydd 

ynghlwm wrth eich rôl newydd. Rwy'n deall y bydd aelodau'r Bwrdd Taliadau yn 

ystyried cyflogau'r cadeiryddion yn y Pumed Cynulliad yn eu cyfarfod nesaf ym 

mis Gorffennaf. 

 

Mae clerc pwyllgor wedi'i ddyrannu i chi, a fydd yn eich helpu i sefydlu'r pwyllgor 

cyn toriad yr haf, sef: Gareth Williams. Mae Gareth yn rheoli tîm bach a fydd yn 

darparu cefnogaeth a chyngor strategol, trefniadol a gweinyddol i chi a'ch 

pwyllgor. Mae Gareth hefyd yn arwain tîm integredig o arbenigwyr o wasanaethau 

eraill (ymchwil, cyfathrebu, materion cyfreithiol, a chyfieithu), ac yn cydweithio â 

staff o bob rhan o'r Comisiwn i ddarparu'r gwasanaethau y bydd ar eich pwyllgor 

eu hangen. Gareth yw eich pwynt cyswllt cyntaf ar gyfer busnes y pwyllgor, ond 

byddwn yn eich annog i ddod i adnabod holl aelodau eraill y tîm ac i gydweithio'n 

uniongyrchol â hwy.  Er y bydd Gareth fel arfer yn treulio cyfran fawr o'i amser ef 

yn gweithio gyda chi, bydd ei rôl hefyd yn cynnwys cefnogi Aelodau eraill y 

pwyllgor, a rhoi cymorth mewn perthynas â'r broses o graffu ar Filiau hyd yn oed 

ar ôl i drafodaethau eich Pwyllgor yn eu cylch ddod i ben]. Gan fod nifer y 

pwyllgorau wedi cynyddu ers y Pedwerydd Cynulliad, mae gwaith yn mynd 

rhagddo i drefnu'r strwythurau staffio terfynol. Bydd fy swyddogion yn cysylltu â 

chi ynghylch y mater hwn cyn dechrau tymor yr Hydref. 

 

Bydd eich clerc a'ch tîm integredig yn eich cynorthwyo i gynnull eich pwyllgor ac i 

lunio rhaglen gychwynnol o waith. Rwyf yn argymell eich bod yn neilltuo amser yn 

gynnar yn eich cyfnod fel Cadeirydd i drafod materion cynllunio strategol, yn 

ogystal â'ch hoff ffyrdd o weithio, gyda holl Aelodau eich pwyllgor. Mae'r 

profiadau a gafwyd yn y Cynulliad blaenorol yn awgrymu y bydd trefnu amser 

penodol i wneud y gwaith hwn, ar wahân i fusnes arferol y Cynulliad, yn fuddiol. I 

helpu gyda'r broses hon, mae rhaglen gynhwysfawr ar gael i chi, fel Cadeirydd, ac 

i Aelodau eraill eich pwyllgor, mewn perthynas â'ch datblygiad proffesiynol 

parhaus. 

 

Rwyf yn bwriadu trefnu cyfarfod o Fforwm y Cadeiryddion cyn gynted ag y bo 

modd. Bydd cyfarfod o'r fath yn rhoi cyfle i chi drafod gyda'ch cymheiriaid sut i 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



 

wneud y defnydd gorau o'r broses graffu yn y system bwyllgorau, ac i gael 

cytundeb trawsbleidiol ar y materion hyn.  Rwyf yn gobeithio y bydd y Fforwm yn 

cyfarfod yn rheolaidd a byddwn yn eich annog i gymryd rhan weithredol er mwyn 

gyrru'r agenda strategol ar gyfer pwyllgorau yn ystod y Pumed Cynulliad. 

 

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at arweinydd a rheolwr busnes eich plaid.  Byddaf 

hefyd yn trefnu bod copi yn cael ei gyhoeddi ar wefan y Cynulliad. Bydd hyn yn 

sicrhau bod eich rôl a'i pharamedrau yn eglur i bawb sydd â diddordeb yn eich 

pwyllgor, gan gynnwys eich cydweithwyr a phobl Cymru. 

 

Dymunaf bob llwyddiant i chi yn eich rôl fel Cadeirydd, ac rwyf yn eich annog i 

gysylltu â mi unrhyw bryd yr hoffech drafod unrhyw agwedd ar waith eich 

pwyllgor. Yn ogystal, gallaf roi sicrwydd i chi y bydd holl staff y Comisiwn, gan 

gynnwys y Prif Weithredwr, yn barod i helpu eich pwyllgor gyflawni ei amcanion. 

 

Yn gywir 

 

 

 

Elin Jones AC 

Llywydd 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 5



 

Atodiad 

 

1. Amcanion strategol ar gyfer pwyllgorau'r Cynulliad 

 

Dyma fydd amcanion y pwyllgorau: 

 

a. Byddant yn cytuno ar gynllun clir a strategol ar gyfer eu gwaith, sy'n 

blaenoriaethu eu gweithgareddau ac yn ystyried eu defnydd o amser ac 

adnoddau. 

 

b. Byddant yn brif flaenoriaeth i'r Aelodau sy'n gwasanaethu arnynt. 

 

c. Byddant yn dilyn arweiniad y cadeiryddion sy'n cyflawni pob un o'r 

disgwyliadau a osodwyd arnynt gan y Cynulliad.  

 

d. Byddant yn cael eu parchu gan Lywodraeth Cymru, gydag ansawdd eu 

hymchwiliadau a'u gwaith craffu, manyldeb eu gwaith holi, dyfnder eu 

gwaith dadansoddi a gwerth eu gwelliannau deddfwriaethol yn golygu y 

bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwrando arnynt. Bydd y Llywodraeth yn 

ymwybodol o ymateb y pwyllgorau wrth iddi lunio ei chynlluniau o ran 

polisi, gwariant a deddfwriaeth.  

 

e. Byddant yn craffu ar bolisi, gwariant a deddfwriaeth o fewn eu portffolios yn 

gyffredinol, nid fel agweddau unigol ar eu cyfrifoldebau. 

 

f. Byddant yn cynnig ac yn disgwyl ymgysylltu adeiladol â Llywodraeth Cymru, 

ond yn cadw statws hyd braich a'u gallu i gynnig beirniadaeth wrthrychol.  

 

g. Ni chânt eu cyfyngu gan rwystrau o ran mynediad at Weinidogion, 

gwybodaeth neu dystion, a byddant yn gallu cael gafael ar y cyngor a'r 

cymorth arbenigol sydd eu hangen arnynt. 

 

h. Byddant yn ymgysylltu ag amrywiaeth eang o bobl, yn cael eu hystyried gan 

grwpiau o randdeiliaid fel cyfranogwyr pwysig, dylanwadol ac fel y lle 

naturiol i gyflwyno pryderon a syniadau, ac yn ymgymryd â gwaith sy'n 

gwella enw da'r Cynulliad ymhlith y cyhoedd. Bydd eu gwaith yn hygyrch i 

gynulleidfa mor eang â phosibl. 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



 

 

i. Byddant yn sicrhau bod y rhai sy'n cyfrannu at eu gwaith yn gweld gwerth 

eu cyfranogiad.  

 

j. Byddant yn gofyn am ddadansoddiad a gwerthusiad beirniadol er mwyn 

gwella eu perfformiad. 

 

2. Prif gyfrifoldebau cadeiryddion y pwyllgorau: 

 

Prif gyfrifoldebau cadeiryddion y pwyllgorau yw: 

 

 pennu cyfeiriad strategol y pwyllgor a sicrhau bod blaenoriaethau tryloyw i’w 

weithgareddau er mwyn gwireddu rhaglen gytbwys, gynhwysfawr ac effeithiol o 

waith craffu ar ddeddfau, polisïau a chyllid; 

 

 sicrhau bod y pwyllgor mor berthnasol a dylanwadol ag y bo modd, gan gadw 

ei annibyniaeth bendant oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru; 

 

 gweithredu’n ddiduedd bob amser, yn bendant, yn deg ac mewn modd sy’n 

ennyn hyder y pwyllgor; 

 

 ennyn hyder Aelodau, tystion a’r cyhoedd yn gyffredinol drwy feistroli’r pwnc 

sydd o dan sylw yng nghylch gwaith y pwyllgor; dangos technegau effeithiol 

mewn gwaith craffu ar ddeddfau, polisïau a chyllid; cadw trefn; a chymhwyso’r 

holl ofynion cyfreithiol a gweithdrefnol sy’n berthnasol i’r pwyllgor; 

 

 sicrhau ymroddiad ac ymrwymiad pob aelod o’r pwyllgor a meithrin consensws 

trawsbleidiol pryd bynnag y bo modd; 

 

 datblygu’r diwylliant a'r amrywiaeth sgiliau sy’n angenrheidiol i sicrhau bod y 

Pwyllgor yn gweithredu mor effeithiol â phosibl fel corff sy’n gwneud gwaith 

craffu; 

 

 sicrhau bod y pwyllgor yn cael y cyngor arbenigol, y wybodaeth a’r cymorth 

arall y mae arno ei angen i gyflawni ei amcanion yn effeithiol; 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 7



 

 sbarduno pob agwedd ar waith y pwyllgor, gan sicrhau y caiff ei gyflawni'n 

gyflym ac i safon uchel; 

 

 cynrychioli'r pwyllgor yn gyhoeddus, yn y cyfryngau ac ym musnes ffurfiol y 

Cynulliad; a 

 

 sicrhau bod gwaith y pwyllgor yn cael ei ddadansoddi a’i werthuso'n feirniadol, 

sbarduno arloesi o ran y modd y mae'n gweithredu er mwyn cynyddu ei effaith, 

a sicrhau ei fod yn fwy effeithiol ac yn ymgysylltu'n well â'r cyhoedd. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Alun Cairns AS 

Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru 

1 Caspian Point 

Ffordd Caspian 

Bae Caerdydd 

CF10 4DQ 

 

 

 

30 Mehefin 2016 

 

 

Annwyl Alun 

Bil Cymru – diwrnod cyntaf y cyfnod pwyllgor – gwelliannau arfaethedig  

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch i roi gwybod i chi am y gwelliannau drafft i Fil Cymru a 

gyhoeddwyd gennyf heddiw, sy'n ceisio mynd i'r afael â'r materion a godwyd 

gennyf yn fy llythyr dyddiedig 21 Mehefin, y bwriedir eu trafod ar ddiwrnod cyntaf 

y cyfnod pwyllgor yr wythnos nesaf. 

Yn dilyn y bleidlais i Adael yn Refferendwm yr UE yr wythnos diwethaf, mae'n 

hanfodol sicrhau bod gan Gymru fframwaith cyfansoddiadol cryf a bod hynt y Bil 

drwy'r Senedd yn parhau.  Fodd bynnag, rwy'n cydnabod y bydd yr amserlen ar 

gyfer craffu ar y Bil pwysig hwn yn cyfyngu ar allu'r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol a'i 

bwyllgorau i ymgysylltu â'r broses. 

Fel yr wyf wedi'i nodi eisoes, rwy'n croesawu'r cynnydd a wnaed wrth wella'r Bil.  

Bwriad y gwelliannau a gyhoeddwyd gennyf yw sicrhau mwy o eglurder a mynd i'r 

afael â phwyntiau  pwysig o ran egwyddor lle y mae'n fwy priodol, yn fy marn i, i'r 

Cynulliad benderfynu ynghylch ei weithdrefnau ei hun ac, yn benodol, sicrhau nad 

yw'r trefniadau deddfwriaethol statudol o ran cydsyniad rhwng y Cynulliad a 

Senedd y DU yn gulach na chwmpas y confensiwn rhynglywodraethol sydd ar 

waith ar hyn o bryd. 

Pe gallech gyflwyno’r gwelliannau hyn gerbron y Tŷ i’w trafod ar ran Llywodraeth y 

DU, byddai hynny’n gam i’w groesawu.  Byddaf yn dilyn y drafodaeth â chryn 

diddordeb beth bynnag. Rwy'n edrych ymlaen at gyfarfod â chi yn y dyfodol agos i 

drafod y materion hyn ac at barhau i weithio'n adeiladol gyda'n gilydd.  Rwy'n 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



 

croesawu cydweithrediad parhaus ein swyddogion a'r wybodaeth ychwanegol a 

gafwyd drwy gynnal y trafodaethau hyn. 

Er lles tryloywder, amgaeaf gopi o'r llythyr a anfonwyd gennyf at holl Aelodau 

Seneddol Cymru heddiw, ynghyd â manylion y gwelliannau hyn.  Anfonwyd copïau 

o'r llythyr hwn at Brif Weinidog Cymru; arweinwyr grwpiau pleidiau'r Cynulliad a 

Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol. 

Yn gywir 

 

 

Elin Jones AC 

Llywydd 

 

Amg 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tŷ’r Cyffredin 

LLUNDAIN 

SW1A OAA 

 

 

30 Mehefin 2016 

 

 

At holl Aelodau Seneddol Cymru  

 

 

Annwyl Gyfaill 

Bil Cymru – gwelliannau arfaethedig ar gyfer 5 Gorffennaf 

Yn dilyn cyflwyno Bil Cymru yn gynharach y mis hwn, hoffwn dynnu eich sylw at y 

gwelliannau drafft a gyhoeddwyd gennyf heddiw sy'n ymwneud â'r cymalau a gaiff 

eu trafod ddydd Mawrth 5 Gorffennaf.  Rwyf wedi ysgrifennu at yr Ysgrifennydd 

Gwladol a holl Aelodau Seneddol Cymru ac rwy'n gobeithio y bydd y gwelliannau 

hyn yn cael eu  trafod fel y gallwn gydweithio i sicrhau setliad cyfansoddiadol sy'n 

ymarferol, yn glir ac yn darparu sail gadarn ar gyfer dyfodol y Cynulliad. 

Yn dilyn y bleidlais i Adael yn Refferendwm yr UE yr wythnos diwethaf, mae'n 

hanfodol sicrhau bod gan Gymru fframwaith cyfansoddiadol cryf a bod hynt y Bil 

drwy'r Senedd yn parhau.  Fy rôl i fel Llywydd yw cynrychioli buddiannau'r 

Cynulliad a sicrhau ei fod yn gweithio'n effeithio i bobl Cymru.  Mae'n gam 

arloesol i'r Llywydd gyhoeddi gwelliannau.  Rwy'n cymryd y cam hwnnw am fy mod 

eisiau bod yn agored ynghylch y gwelliannau i'r Bil sy'n bwysig i'r sefydliad.  Mae'r 

gwelliannau wedi'u paratoi ar sail y dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd wrth graffu ar y Bil 

drafft cyn y broses ddeddfu a chasgliadau Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a 

Deddfwriaethol blaenorol y Cynulliad, ac ar brofiad y sefydliad o weithio'n unol â'r 

setliad presennol.  Rwy'n parhau i drafod y rhain ag Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru 

ac rwy'n croesawu'r cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma. 

Bwriedir i'r gwelliannau hyn adlewyrchu dwy egwyddor allweddol. 

Mae'r cyntaf yn egwyddor gyfansoddiadol bwysig: dylai'r Cynulliad gydsynio 

i unrhyw newid a wneir i'w bwerau.  Felly, ni ddylai'r trefniadau cydsyniad 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



 

deddfwriaethol statudol rhwng y Cynulliad a'r Senedd fod yn gulach na 

chwmpas y confensiwn rhynglywodraethol sydd ar waith ar hyn o bryd.  Yn 

yr un modd, dylai'r Cynulliad roi ei gydsyniad cyn datganoli'r pŵer i amrywio 

cyfradd y dreth incwm. 

Yr ail egwyddor y mae'r gwelliannau'n rhoi sylw iddi yw y dylai'r Cynulliad, ar ôl 16 

mlynedd o ddatganoli, gael y pŵer a'r hyblygrwydd i benderfynu ynghylch ei 

faterion mewnol ei hun.  Ymdrinnir â'r egwyddor hon drwy welliannau i'r meysydd 

a ganlyn:  

 Mae'r Bil yn datganoli pŵer i'r Cynulliad mewn perthynas â'i drefniadu 

etholiadol, ac mae hynny i'w groesawu, ond mae problemau i'w datrys o 

hyd.  Mae'r gofyniad i'r Cynulliad gynnal ei gyfarfod cyntaf ac ethol Llywydd 

o fewn saith diwrnod yn arwain at drafferthion ymarferol ac nid yw'n rhoi'r 

un hyblygrwydd i'r Cynulliad â'r Alban, lle y ceir gofyniad i ethol Llywydd o 

fewn 14 diwrnod.  Yn yr un modd, rwyf am i'r pwerau i amrywio dyddiadau 

etholiadau cyffredinol y Cynulliad, ac i bennu dyddiadau etholiadau 

eithriadol y Cynulliad, gael eu trosglwyddo i'r Llywydd, yn unol â'r drefn yn 

yr Alban.  Ar hyn o bryd, byddai'r Bil yn trosglwyddo'r cyntaf o'r pwerau hyn 

i Weinidogion Cymru, ac yn gadael yr ail yn nwylo'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol. 

 Credaf, felly, y dylid diwygio'r Bil hefyd i gael gwared ar ragnodion newydd a 

diangen ynghylch y trefniadau gweithredu, a geir yn y darpariaethau sy'n 

gofyn am uwch-fwyafrif ac asesiadau o'r effaith ar gyfiawnder. 

 Rwy'n falch o weld bod y Bil yn rhoi'r pŵer i'r Cynulliad reoli materion 

ariannol, materion atebolrwydd a materion archwilio ar gyfer cyrff yng 

Nghymru.  Hoffwn i'r Bil gynnwys nifer fach o ddarpariaethau ychwanegol 

pwysig yn hyn o beth. 

Mae'r dogfennau sydd wedi'u hatodi yn cynnwys disgrifiad manwl o'r newidiadau 

rwy'n eu hawgrymu, yn ogystal â'r gwelliannau drafft eu hunain. 

Mae'r gwelliannau a gynigwyd gennyf yn mynd i'r afael â materion a gaiff eu 

trafod ar ddiwrnod cyntaf y broses graffu a gynhelir gan bwyllgor Tŷ'r Cyffredin 

(Rhan 1 o Fil Cymru, ac eithrio cymal 3 a'r atodlenni cysylltiedig) ar 5 Gorffennaf.  

Rwy'n gobeithio gwneud awgrymiadau pellach ynglŷn â'r materion sydd i'w trafod 

ar ail ddiwrnod cyfnod pwyllgor Tŷ'r Cyffredin ar 11 Gorffennaf.  Rwyf wedi 

ysgrifennu at yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol hefyd er mwyn nodi fy safbwyntiau 

cychwynnol ar Fil Cymru yn fwy cyffredinol gan gynnwys y model cadw pwerau. 

[Llythyr 21 Mehefin]  

Tudalen y pecyn 12

http://www.senedd.cynulliad.cymru/documents/s51597/Papur%202.pdf


 

Rwy'n gobeithio, felly, y bydd y gwelliannau hyn yn helpu i lywio ac i gefnogi 

gwaith craffu cynnar a chadarn ar y Bil yn Senedd y DU ac yma yn y Cynuliad, a 

hynny o dan arweiniad y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

newydd.  Rwy’n edrych ymlaen at ddilyn y drafodaeth yr wythnos nesaf. 

Byddwn yn fwy na pharod i drafod unrhyw agwedd gyda chi ac mae croeso i chi 

gysylltu â'm swyddfa. 

Yn gywir  

 

 

Elin Jones AC 

Llywydd 

 

Amg 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



1 

 

Briefing on Presiding Officer’s proposed Amendments 

for Day 1 Consideration of the Wales Bill  

 

Summary table of amendments ................................................................... 2 

Clause 1 - Permanence of the National Assembly for Wales and Welsh 

Government ................................................................................................ 4 

Clause 2 - Convention about Parliament legislating on devolved matters ...... 7 

Clause 4 – Wales Public Authorities (Schedule 4) ........................................ 11 

Clause 6 - Timing of elections .................................................................... 12 

Clause 8 - Super-majority requirement for certain legislation ...................... 16 

Clause 10 - Introduction of Bills: justice impact assessment ....................... 18 

Clause 12 Financial control, accounts and audit ......................................... 19 

Clause 15 - Change of name of the Assembly etc: translation of references 23 

Clause 16 - Welsh rates of income tax: removal of referendum requirement

 ................................................................................................................. 26 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



2 

 

Summary table of amendments 

 

Clause Purpose and effect of proposed amendments 

Clause 1  The amendments give the declaration of the permanence of the Assembly appropriate prominence in the 

Bill, by inserting the references to the permanence of the Assembly at the start of Part 1 of Government of 

Wales Act 2006, rather than in Part 2 of Government of Wales Act2006. 

The amendments also separate out the provisions relating to the permanence of the Assembly and the 

Welsh Government to reflect the constitutional separation between the legislature and the executive. 

Clause 2 
The amendments include provision for Parliament to legislate in “exceptional circumstances” and specifies 

what those circumstances are. They include matters relating to public safety or national security, or urgent 

economic issues where there is not sufficient time to seek the Assembly’s consent. 

 

The amendments also define “devolved purposes”, to provide that the statutory expression of the 

convention applies at least as broadly to Wales as is currently the case in Scotland’s Standing Orders. 

 

Claus 4 
The amendment adds the National Assembly for Wales Commissioner for Standards and the National 

Assembly for Wales Remuneration Board to the list of Wales Public Authorities. 

 

Clause 6 
The amendments transfer the power to vary the date of Assembly ordinary general elections and the duty 

to set the date of an Assembly extraordinary general election to the Presiding Officer. 

 

Clause 8 
The amendments remove the provisions for Standing Orders to include requirements for a statement to be 

published in English and Welsh.    

T
udalen y pecyn 15



3 

 

Clause 10 
The amendment removes the requirement for a Justice Impact Assessment.  

Clause 12 
The amendment provides that funds issued from the Welsh Consolidated Fund can only be used for the 

purposes for which they were issued. 

To amend Schedule 2 in relation to clause 12: 

 

 to allow the Assembly competence to add to the list of ‘relevant persons’ in sections 120(1) and 

124(3) of the Government of Wales Act 2006. 

 to remove the requirement for SoS consent to amendments to provisions in Part 5 and section 159 of 

Government of Wales Act 2006, 

 to remove requirements relating to the composition of the Committee with oversight of the Auditor 

General and the exercise of his functions. 

Clause 15 
The amendments insert references to Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 

Cymru and Deddfau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru. 

 

Clause 16 
The amendment introduces a requirement that income tax varying powers can be commenced only with 

the consent of the Assembly. 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 16



4 

 

Clause 1 - Permanence of the National Assembly for 

Wales and Welsh Government 

1. Clause 1 amends the Government of Wales Act 2006 by inserting two 

new sections: 92A and 92B. 

2. As drafted, the clauses referring to the permanence of the Assembly 

and Welsh Government will appear after Part 2 of Government of Wales Act 

2006. 

3. The purpose of the amendments are, first, to give the declaration of the 

permanence of the Assembly appropriate prominence in the Bill, by including 

it in section 1 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, instead of it being 

inserted in a new clause 92A of that Act. 

4. Secondly, the amendments reflect the constitutional separation between 

the legislature – the National Assembly for Wales – and the executive – the 

Welsh Government, by dealing with them in separate, new, provisions to be 

inserted into the Government of Wales Act 2006; and by inserting those 

provisions into different parts of the 2006 Act – the Parts dealing, 

respectively, with the Assembly and the Government. 

5. In this sense, it reverts to the approach adopted in the Draft Wales Bill 

published in October 2015. 

Text of the clause as amended 

 

1 Permanence of the National Assembly for Wales and Welsh Government 
 

(1) In section 1 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (“the Assembly”), after Part 
2subsection (1)  (the Welsh Government) insert— 

“PART 2A 
PERMANENCE OF THE ASSEMBLY AND WELSH GOVERNMENT 
 92A Permanence of the Assembly and Welsh Government 

“(1A) The Assembly is a permanent part of the United Kingdom’s constitutional 
arrangements. 
(1B) The purpose of this section is, with due regard to the other provisions of this Act, to 
signify the commitment of the Parliament and Government of the United Kingdom to the 
Assembly and the Welsh Government.  
(1C) In view of that commitment it is declared that the Assembly and the Welsh Government 
are is not to be abolished except on the basis of a decision of the people of Wales voting in a 
referendum. 

(2) In section 45 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the Welsh Government), for the words in 
subsection (1) before paragraph (a) substitute- 
 
“(1) There is to be a Welsh Government or Llywodraeth Cymru. 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



5 

 

     
(1A) The Welsh Government is a permanent part of the United Kingdom’s constitutional 
arrangements. 
 
(1B)    The purpose of subsection (1A) is, with due regard to the other provisions of this Act, 
to signify the commitment of the Parliament and Government of the United Kingdom to the 
Welsh Government. 
 
(1C)    In view of that commitment it is declared that the Welsh Government is not to be 
abolished except on the basis of a decision of the people of Wales voting in a referendum. 
 
(1D) The members of the Welsh Government are—”. 
 

(3) In the Government of Wales Act 2006, after Part 2 (the Welsh Government) insert— 
 
92B Recognition of Welsh law 
(1) There is a body of Welsh law made by the Assembly and the Welsh Ministers. 

              (2) The purpose of this section is, with due regard to the other provisions of this Act, to 
recognise the ability of the Assembly and the Welsh Ministers to make law forming part of the law of 
England and Wales.” 

 

 

Text of amendments and explanatory statements 

Amendment 1 

Clause 1, page 1, leave out lines 5 to 9 and insert - 

“In section 1 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the Assembly), after subsection (1), 

insert –“ 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment changes the place in the Government of Wales Act 2006 in which the text inserted 

by clause 1 appears. Rather than in Section 92A, references to the permanence of the Assembly 

would appear in Section 1 of the Government of Wales Act 2006.  

Amendment 2 

Clause 1, page 1, line 10, leave out “and the Welsh Government are” and replace with “is” 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment gives effect to separate provisions relating to the National Assembly for Wales, as 

the Legislature, and the Welsh Government, as the Executive. 

Amendment 3 

Clause 1, page 1, line 14, leave out “and the Welsh Government.” 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment gives effect to separate provisions relating to the National Assembly for Wales, as 

the Legislature, and the Welsh Government, as the Executive. 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



6 

 

Amendment 4 

Clause 1, page 1, line 16, leave out “and the Welsh Government are” and replace with “is” 

Explanatory statement – 

The amendment gives effect to separate provisions relating to the National Assembly for Wales, as 

the Legislature, and the Welsh Government, as the Executive. 

Amendment 5 

Clause 1, page 1, line 18, at end insert –  

(2) In section 45 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the Welsh Government), for the words in 

subsection (1) before paragraph (a) substitute- 

 

“(1) There is to be a Welsh Government or Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 
(1A) The Welsh Government is a permanent part of the United Kingdom’s constitutional 
arrangements. 
 
(1B) The purpose of subsection (1A) is, with due regard to the other provisions of this Act, to 

signify the commitment of the Parliament and Government of the United Kingdom to the 

Welsh Government. 

(1C)    In view of that commitment it is declared that the Welsh Government is not to be 

abolished except on the basis of a decision of the people of Wales voting in a referendum. 

 

(1D) The members of the Welsh Government are—”. 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment gives effect to separate provisions relating to the National Assembly for Wales, as 

the Legislature, and the Welsh Government, as the Executive. The amendment changes the place in 

the Government of Wales Act 2006 in which the text relating to the permanence of the Welsh 

Government would appear. 

Amendment 6 

Clause 1, page 1, line 18, at end insert –  

“(3) In the Government of Wales Act 2006, after Part 2 (the Welsh Government) insert—“ 

Explanatory statement – 

The amendment is required as a consequence of changing the location of the provision relating 

to the permanence of the Assembly.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



7 

 

 

Clause 2 - Convention about Parliament legislating on 

devolved matters 

Circumstances in which the Assembly’s consent is not required 

6. This clause as written will not achieve a robust statutory basis for the 

legislative consent convention. Clause 2 contains a provision that Parliament 

will not “normally” legislate with regard to devolved matters without the 

consent of the Assembly. The use of the word “normally” is unsatisfactory as 

it is potentially open to a broad interpretation. 

7. The proposed amendments provide that Parliament should only 

legislate on the Assembly’s behalf without its consent in exceptional 

circumstances and those circumstances are specified. The word “normally” is 

deleted because it is unclear – there is no definition of what is a “normal” 

situation. 

8. The UK Parliament should only legislate on devolved matters when: (a) 

there is an imminent risk of serious harm to national security, public safety, 

the health of the public, plants and animals and economic stability in the UK, 

(b) the UK Parliament legislation specifically addresses the risk, (c) the 

imminence of the risk in relation to Wales means that it is not practical to 

seek consent, and (d) the Assembly has not already introduced legislation to 

specifically address the risk. 

9. Combined, these amendments provide greater clarity as to when the UK 

Parliament should seek consent from the Assembly, by establishing a proper 

statutory recognition of how consent should work. They also recognise the 

maturity of the Assembly as a legislature and that its consent should be 

obtained before UK Parliament legislates on devolved matters. 

10. Finally, it is worth noting that there is no attempt to interfere with 

Parliamentary sovereignty here, as section 107(5) of the Government of 

Wales Act 2006 makes clear. 

Provisions which require consent 

11. Secondly, in relation to the scope of the clause, the purpose of this 

amendment is to provide that the statutory expression of the convention 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



8 

 

applies at least as broadly to Wales as is currently the case in Scotland’s 

Standing Orders.
1

    

12. The clause as currently drafted deals only with the UK Parliament’s 

ability to legislate on matters within devolved competence.  It should also 

deal with the situation where a UK Bill seeks to amend that competence.   

13. The amendments also reflect the conclusions of the previous 

Assembly’s Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee,
2

  that consent 

should go beyond the current Scottish convention, so as to require Assembly 

consent for UK Bills which alter the functions of the Assembly, without 

altering its legislative competence. 

14. Devolved matters are therefore defined to include matters that:  

(a) are within the legislative competence of the Assembly,  

(b) modify the legislative competence of the Assembly,  

(c) modify functions of the Assembly, and  

(d) modify functions of members of the Welsh Government (mainly the 

Welsh Ministers) where such functions are within devolved areas.  

Text of the clause as amended 

2 Convention about Parliament legislating on devolved matters 
In section 107 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (Acts of the National Assembly for Wales), after 
subsection (5) insert— 
“(6) But it is recognised that the Parliament of the United Kingdom will not normally legislate with 

regard to devolved matters without the consent of the Assembly  unless all of the following 

conditions apply— 

(a) there is an imminent risk of serious adverse impact on— 

(i) the national security of the United Kingdom, or  

(ii) public safety, public, animal or plant health or economic stability in any part of 

the United Kingdom, 

(b)  the legislation specifically addresses that risk, 

(c) the imminence of the risk in relation to Wales makes it impractical to seek the consent of 

the Assembly, 

                                       
1

 As set out in Standing Orders of the Scottish Parliament, Chapter 98 

2

 National Assembly for Wales, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee, Report on 

the Legislative Consent Memorandum, Wales Bill, June 2014 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 21

http://abms/documents/s28887/Report%20on%20the%20Legislative%20Consent%20Memorandum%20Wales%20Bill%20-%20June%202014.pdf
http://abms/documents/s28887/Report%20on%20the%20Legislative%20Consent%20Memorandum%20Wales%20Bill%20-%20June%202014.pdf


9 

 

(d) no Bill has been passed under section 110(1)(a) specifically to address the risk, and 

              (e) no subordinate legislation specifically to address the risk has been laid before the 

Assembly and has come into force.”  

(7) In this section, “devolved matters” means matters that— 

(a) are within the legislative competence of the Assembly; 

(b) modify the legislative competence of the Assembly; 

(c) modify a function of the Assembly; 

              (d) modify any functions of any member of the Welsh Government exercisable within 

devolved competence (and “within devolved competence” is to be read in accordance with section 

58A).” 

 

 

Text of amendments and explanatory statements 

 

Amendment 1 

Clause 2, page 2, line 12, leave out “normally”. 

Explanatory statement 

This amendment removes the word “normally”.  

Amendment 2 

Clause 2, Page 2, line 13, after “Assembly” insert –  

“unless all of the following conditions apply— 

(a) there is an imminent risk of serious adverse impact on— 

(i) the national security of the United Kingdom, or  

(ii) public safety, public, animal or plant health or economic stability in any 

part of the United Kingdom, 

(b)  the legislation specifically addresses that risk, 

(c) the imminence of the risk in relation to Wales makes it impractical to seek the 

consent of the Assembly, 

(d) no Bill has been passed under section 110(1)(a) specifically to address the risk, 

and 

(e) no subordinate legislation specifically to address the risk has been laid before the 

Assembly and has come into force.” 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment specifies the circumstances in which Parliament can legislate on devolved matters 

on behalf of the National Assembly for Wales without its consent. 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



10 

 

Amendment 3 

Clause 2, Page 2, line 13, at end add –  

“(7) In this section, “devolved matters” means matters that— 

(a) are within the legislative competence of the Assembly; 

(b) modify the legislative competence of the Assembly; 

(c) modify a function of the Assembly; 

(d) modify a function of a member of the Welsh Government exercisable within 

devolved competence (and “within devolved competence” is to be read in 

accordance with section 58A).” 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment defines devolved matters for the purposes of Clause 2.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



11 

 

 

Clause 4 – Wales Public Authorities (Schedule 4) 

15. The Bill includes a list of "Wales public authorities", in relation to which 

the Assembly will have competence to legislate, without the need for UK 

Government consent. 

16. There are two Wales public authorities which do not fall neatly under 

the definition: “The National Assembly for Wales Commissioner for 

Standards” and “The National Assembly for Wales Remuneration Board”.  

17. The proposed amendments to Schedule 4 would add those bodies to 

the list. 

Text of proposed amendments and explanatory notes 

Amendment 1 

Schedule 4, page 94, at the appropriate place, insert -  

“National Assembly for Wales Commissioner for Standards.” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment adds the National Assembly for Wales Commissioner for Standards to the list of 

Wales public authorities. 

 

Amendment 2 

Schedule 4, page 94, at the appropriate place, insert –  

“National Assembly for Wales Remuneration Board.” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment adds the National Assembly for Wales Remuneration Board to the list of Wales 

public authorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



12 

 

 

Clause 6 - Timing of elections 

18. The Bill transfers powers to vary the date of an ordinary general election 

from the Secretary of State to Welsh Ministers. The Bill makes no change in 

relation to the Secretary of State’s power to set the date for an Assembly 

extraordinary general election. 

19. The intention of the proposed amendments is, first, to transfer certain 

powers over the timing of Assembly elections to the Presiding Officer, and 

mirrors the provisions in the Scotland Act 1998. The timing of ordinary 

Assembly general elections is fixed as the first Thursday in May every 5 years 

(section 3(1) of the Government of Wales Act 2006). The proposal is to give 

the Presiding Officer the power: 

  to vary the date of Assembly ordinary general elections, and  

  to set the date for an Assembly extraordinary general election 

20. The amendments also propose to change the deadline for the Assembly 

to meet for the first time, after a general election, to fourteen days, rather 

than seven days as at present.  

21. A further seven days would allow more discussions to take place 

between political parties about early Assembly business such as the choice 

of Presiding Officer, First Minister, etc. This is particularly useful where the 

election does not produce an overall majority for any of them, as can 

frequently happen under the Assembly’s electoral system. 

Text of Sections 4 and 5 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 as 

amended 

4 Power to vary date of ordinary general election  

(1) Subject to section 3(1A), the Presiding Officer may propose that the poll at an ordinary general 

election is  to be held on a day which is neither— 

(a) more than one month earlier, nor 

(b) more than one month later, 

than the first Thursday in May. 

(2) If the Presiding Officer makes a proposal under subsection (1), Her Majesty may by proclamation 

under the Welsh Seal— 

(a) to be dissolve the Assembly on a day specified in the order, and 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



13 

 

(b) require the poll at the election to be held on the day proposed, and  

(c) require the Assembly to meet within the period of fourteen days beginning immediately 

after the day of the poll. 

(3) In calculating any period of days for the purposes of provision made by virtue of subsection (2)(c), 

the following days are to be disregarded— 

(a) Saturday and Sunday, 

(b) Good Friday, 

(c) any day which is a bank holiday in Wales under the Banking and Financial Dealings Act 

1971 (c 80), and 

(d) any day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning. 

(4) If the Presiding Officer makes a proposal under subsection (1), the Welsh Ministers may by order 

make provision for— 

(a) any provision of, or made under, the Representation of the People Acts, or 

(b) any other enactment relating to the election of Assembly members, to have effect with 

such modifications or exceptions as the Welsh Ministers considers appropriate in connection 

with the alteration of the day of the poll. 

(5) No order is to be made under this section unless the Secretary of State has consulted the Welsh 

Ministers about it. 

(6) A statutory instrument containing an order under this section is subject to annulment in 

pursuance of a resolution of the Assembly. 

5 Extraordinary general elections  

(1) The Presiding Officer must propose a day for the holding of a poll if subsection (2) or (3) 
applies. 

(2) This  subsection applies if- 
(a) the Assembly resolves that it should be dissolved and,  

(b) the resolution of the Assembly is passed on a vote in which the number of Assembly 
members voting in favour of it is not less than two-thirds of the total number of Assembly 
seats. 

(3) This subsection applies if any period during which the Assembly is required under section 47 to 
nominate an Assembly member for appointment as the First Minister ends without such a 
nomination being made. 

(4) If the Presiding Officer  proposes a day under subsection (1), Her Majesty may by proclamation 
under the [Welsh Seal]— 

(a) dissolve the Assembly and require an extraordinary general election to be held, 

(b) require the poll at the election to be held on the day proposed, and 

(c) require the Assembly to meet within the period of fourteen  days beginning immediately 
after the day of the poll. 

(5) If a poll is held under this section within the period of six months ending with the day on which 
the poll at the next ordinary general election would be held (disregarding section 4)), that ordinary 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



14 

 

general election is not to be held. 

(6) But subsection (5) does not affect the year in which the subsequent ordinary general election is 
to be held. 

(7) In calculating any period of days for the purposes of subsection (4)(c), the following days are to 
be disregarded- 

(a) Saturday and Sunday 

(b) Christmas Eve, Christmas Day and Good Friday 

(c) any day which is a Bank Holiday in Wales under the Banking and Financial Dealings Act 
1971 (c. 80), and 

(d) Any day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning. 

 

Text of amendments and explanatory statements 

Amendment 1 

Clause 6, page 7, line 2, leave out paragraph (b) and insert –  

“(b) for “The Secretary of State may by order provide for the poll at an ordinary general 

election to be” substitute “The Presiding Officer may propose that the poll at an ordinary 

general election is”. 

Explanatory statement - 

The Bill as drafted transfers the power to vary the date of an ordinary general election from the 

Secretary of State to Welsh Ministers. The amendment transfers the power to the Presiding Officer 

of the National Assembly for Wales. 

Amendment 2 

Clause 6, page 7, line 2, at end insert  –  

“(7A) Leave out subsection (2) and insert – 

“(2) If the Presiding Officer makes a proposal under subsection (1), Her Majesty may 

by proclamation under the Welsh Seal— 

(a) dissolve the Assembly, 

(b) require the poll at the election to be held on the day proposed, and  

(c) require the Assembly to meet within the period of fourteen days 

beginning immediately after the day of the poll.” 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment inserts provision for the arrangements for varying the date of an ordinary general 

election. The amendment also extends from seven to fourteen days the period within which the 

Assembly is required to meet following the day of a poll. 

Amendment 3 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



15 

 

Clause 6, page 7, line 2, at end insert -  

“(7B) In subsection (4) for “An order under this section may” substitute “If the Presiding 

Officer makes a proposal under subsection (1), the Welsh Ministers may by order”. 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment replicates existing provisions in the Government of Wales Act 2006 with a 

modification resulting from the transfer of the power to vary the date of an ordinary general 

election to the Presiding Officer.  

 

Amendment 4 

Clause 6, page 7, line 6, at end insert –  

“(10A) Section 5 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (Extraordinary general elections) is 

amended as set out in paragraphs (a) to (d). 

(a) In subsection (1) for “Secretary of State” substitute “Presiding Officer”. 

(b) In subsection (4) for “Secretary of State” substitute “Presiding Officer”. 

(c) In subsection (4) for “Order in Council” substitute “proclamation under the Welsh 

Seal”. 

(d) In subsection (4) for “seven” substitute “fourteen”. 

Explanatory statement –  

The amendment inserts a new provision, transferring the power to propose the day of an 

extraordinary general election from the Secretary of State to the Presiding Officer. The amendment 

also extends from seven to fourteen days the period within which the Assembly is required to meet 

following the day of a poll. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



16 

 

Clause 8 - Super-majority requirement for certain 

legislation 

22. Clause 8 provides that Assembly legislation dealing with certain 

protected subject-matters (i.e. name of the Assembly; who is entitled to vote 

at Assembly elections; the voting system at Assembly elections; the number 

of constituencies and regions; the number of Assembly Members) will 

require a super-majority of the Assembly (i.e. two thirds of the total number 

of Assembly seats). 

23. Clause 8 requires the Presiding Officer to decide whether or not an 

Assembly Bill relates to a protected subject-matter, and to state that 

decision. 

24. Clause 8 then makes the following provision with regard to that 

statement: 

  It must be in both English and Welsh. Subject to that, the form of the 

statement and the manner it is made are to be dealt with under 

Assembly Standing Orders. 

  Assembly Standing Orders may provide for the statement to be 

published (and if there is such a requirement to publish, the statement 

must be published in both English and Welsh). 

25. This amendment removes those two provisions. Including them is at 

odds with much of the rest of the Bill which recognises the Assembly as a 

mature legislature and allows the Assembly to determine its own internal 

arrangements. Also, in practice, these are not necessary because: 

   Any statement which the Presiding Officer is required to make by 

statute will always be published by the Assembly. 

   English and Welsh are both official languages of the Assembly and 

both must be treated equally; see the statutory duty of equality set out 

in section 35 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, and the statutory 

Official Languages Scheme adopted by the National Assembly for Wales 

Commission. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



17 

 

Text of the clause as amended 

8 Super-majority requirement for certain legislation 
In the Government of Wales Act 2006, after section 111 insert— 
 
“111A Bills with protected subject-matter: super-majority requirement 
(1) For the purposes of this Part a provision of a Bill relates to a protected subject-matter if it would 
modify, or confer power to modify, any of the matters listed in subsection (2) (but not if the 
provision is incidental to or consequential on another provision of the Bill). 
 
(2) The matters are— 

(a) the name of the Assembly, 
(b) the persons entitled to vote as electors at an election for membership of the Assembly, 
(c) the system by which members of the Assembly are returned, 
(d) the specification or number of constituencies, regions or any equivalent electoral area, 
and 
(e) the number of members to be returned for each constituency, region or equivalent 
electoral area. 
 

(3) The Presiding Officer must, after the last time when a Bill may be amended but before the 
decision whether to pass or reject it— 

(a) decide whether or not, in the view of the Presiding Officer, any provision of the Bill 
relates to a protected subject-matter, and 
(b) state that decision. 
 

(4) If the Presiding Officer decides that any provision of the Bill relates to a protected subject-matter, 
the Bill is not passed unless the number of Assembly members voting in favour of it at the final stage 
is at least two-thirds of the total number of Assembly seats. 
(5) A statement under subsection (3)(b) must be made in both English and Welsh; but, subject to 
that, the form of the statement and the manner in which it is to be made are to be determined 
under the Standing Orders. 
(6) The Standing Orders— 

(a) may provide for a statement under subsection (3)(b) to be published, and 

             (b) if they do so, must provide for it to be published in both English and Welsh.” 

 

 

Text of proposed amendment and explanatory statement 

Clause 8, page 10, line 3, leave out subsections (5) and (6) 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment removes the requirements on the face of the Bill for the National Assembly for 

Wales’ Standing Orders to include requirements for the publication of a statement in Welsh and 

English. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



18 

 

Clause 10 - Introduction of Bills: justice impact 

assessment 

26. Clause 10 inserts a new Clause 110A in the Government of Wales Act 

2006. Sub-clause 110A(1) will require the Assembly’s Standing Orders to 

include provision requiring the Member in charge of an Assembly Bill to 

make a written statement about the impact of the Bill on the justice system. 

Sub clause 110A(2) says the Standing Orders can determine the form of the 

statement and the manner in which it is made. Sub clause 110A(3) requires 

the Assembly’s Standing Orders to provide for such statements to be 

published. 

27. The Assembly’s Standing Orders already require the publication of an 

assessment of the costs of an Assembly Bill. The inclusion of a further 

requirement on this specific matter is unnecessary and runs contrary to the 

principle that that the Assembly should be able to determine its own affairs 

and procedures.  

28. The proposed amendment removes Clause 110A. 

 

Text of proposed amendment and explanatory notes 

Page 11, line 38, leave out clause 10. 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment leaves out clause 10 in its entirety. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



19 

 

Clause 12 Financial control, accounts and audit 

29. Clause 12 inserts a new section 130A into the Government of Wales Act 

2006 replacing previous arrangements for financial controls and provides 

that Welsh legislation should make provision for the matters contained 

within that section. The new section in the Government of Wales Act 2006 

should include basic safeguards, in the form of minimum requirements 

which Welsh legislation should provide for which reflect good governance. 

Section 124 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 currently provides for 

authorisation by the Assembly. The amendment sets out that funds should 

only be issued from the Welsh Consolidated Fund in accordance with 

legislation or authorisation by the Assembly, and can only be utilised for the 

purposes for which they were authorised. This would reflect provision for 

Scotland (Section 65 of the Scotland Act 1998). 

Amendments to Schedule 2 (new Schedule 7B to Government of Wales 

Act 2006) as it applies to clause 12 

30. Schedule 2 paragraph 7 sets out the sections of the Government of 

Wales Act 2006 which the Assembly will have competence to modify.  

Paragraph 7(2)(d) specifically refers to those sections of Part 5 of the 2006 

Act which are amendable without restriction. 

31. As it stands this does not include the ability to amend sections 120(1) 

or 124(3) of the Government of Wales Act 2006 which provide for ‘relevant 

persons’ – otherwise known as ‘direct funded bodies’ – which receive 

funding directly from the Welsh Consolidated Fund i.e. Welsh Government, 

the Assembly Commission, the Auditor General and the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales.   

32. The proposed amendment to Schedule 2 paragraph 7(2)(d) would allow 

the Assembly competence to add to, but not remove from, the list of 

‘relevant persons’. This would allow the Assembly to enable a body which is 

independent of Welsh Government to also be financially independent, where 

this is deemed appropriate. Any use of such competence to add to the 

‘relevant persons’ would require an Act of the Assembly.  

33. Schedule 2 paragraph 7(5) provides that the remaining provisions of 

Part 5 of the 2006 Act (i.e. those not specifically referred to in paragraph 

7(2)(d) and section 159) are amendable where the amendment is incidental 

to or consequential on, a provision of an Act of the Assembly relating to 

budgetary procedures and the Secretary of State consents to the 

amendment.  It is not clear why the consent of the Secretary of State should 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



20 

 

be required to an amendment which will have no impact beyond the 

Assembly’s financial procedures.   

34. The proposed amendment to Schedule 2 paragraph 7(5) removes the 

requirement for Secretary of State consent. 

35. Schedule 2 paragraph 5(6) allows for the conferral of functions of 

oversight of the Auditor General, or exercise of his functions, on an 

Assembly Committee (most likely Finance Committee).  Such a Committee 

would be subject to the same restrictions on composition as are currently set 

for the Audit Committee (PAC) in section 30 of the Government of Wales Act 

2006. This seems unnecessarily prescriptive, particularly given that the 

Wales Bill now allows the Assembly to determine the membership of its own 

committees and can modify section 30 (in its entirety) of the Government of 

Wales Act 2006.  

36. Given the competence devolved over the composition of the audit 

committee, this prescription should be removed. If a safeguard is required 

then it would be more appropriate for this to be provided for in the 

Assembly’s Standing Orders than on the face of the Bill. 

37. The proposed amendment removes the restriction on the composition 

of such a Committee and provide that this would be a matter for Standing 

Orders. 

Text of the Bill as amended 

12 Financial control, accounts and audit 

(1) The Government of Wales Act 2006 is amended as follows. 
(2) Omit section 119. 
(3) After section 130 insert— 
 

“130A Financial control, accounts and audit 
(1) Welsh legislation must provide— 

 
(a) for a sum paid out of the Welsh Consolidated Fund not be applied for any purpose 
other than that for which it was charged or (as the case may be) paid out. 

 
Schedule 2, paragraph 5(6) 
 
(6) Sub-paragraph (5) does not prevent the conferral of functions relating to oversight or supervision 
of the Auditor General or of the Auditor General’s functions on a committee of the Assembly .that— 
(a) does not consist of or include any of the following 
persons— 
(i) the First Minister or any person designated to 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



21 

 

exercise the functions of the First Minister, 
(ii) a Welsh Minister appointed under section 48, 
(iii) the Counsel General or any person designated to 
exercise the functions of the Counsel General, or 
(iv) a Deputy Welsh Minister, and 
(b) is not chaired by an Assembly member who is a member of 
a political group with an executive role. 
 
Schedule 2, Paragraph 7(2)(d): 
 
(d) the following provisions in Part 5 (finance)— 

(i)  section 120(1) as regards a modification that adds a person or body; 
(ii) section 120 (2); 
(iii) section 124(3) as regards a modification that adds a person or body; 
(iv) sections 125 to 130; 
(v) sections 131 to 143; 
(vi) any provision of Schedule 8; 

 
 
Schedule 2, paragraph 7(5)(a) 
 
(5) Sub-paragraph (1), so far as it applies in relation to a provision of 
Part 5 or section 159, does not apply to a provision of an Act of the 
Assembly if— 

(a) the provision is incidental to, or consequential on, a 
provision of an Act of the Assembly relating to budgetary 
procedures or devolved taxes, and 
(b) the Secretary of State consents to the provision. 
 

 

 

Text of proposed amendments and explanatory notes 

Amendment 1 

Clause 12, page 12, line 24, at end insert –  

“(a) for a sum paid out of the Welsh Consolidated Fund not to be applied for any purpose 

other than that for which it was charged or (as the case may be) paid out” 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment sets out that Welsh legislation must provide that the Assembly has to authorise any 

drawing from the Consolidated Fund and that such funds can only be utilised for the purposes for 

which they were authorised. 

Amendment 2 

Schedule 2, page 79, line 29, leave out from “Assembly” to end of line 39. 

Explanatory statement 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



22 

 

The amendment removes the requirements relating to the composition and internal arrangements 

of the Assembly Committee with oversight of the Auditor General and/or their functions. 

Amendment 3 

Schedule 2, page 80, line 41, at end insert –  

“(i) section 120(1) as regards a modification that adds a person or body;” 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment will enable the Assembly to amend sections 120(1) of the 2006 Act which provide 

for ‘relevant persons’ which receive funding directly from the Welsh Consolidated Fund. 

Amendment 4 

Schedule 2, page 80, line 42, at end insert –  

“(iii) section 124(3) as regards a modification that adds a person or body;” 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment will enable the Assembly to amend sections 124(3) of the 2006 Act which provide 

for ‘relevant persons’ which receive funding directly from the Welsh Consolidated Fund. 

Amendment 5 

Schedule 2, page 81, line 22, leave out from “taxes” to end of line 23. 

Explanatory statement 

The amendment removes the requirement for Secretary of State consent for the Assembly to amend 

the provisions of Part 5 of the 2006 Act which are not specifically referred to in paragraph 7(2)(d) 

and section 159, where the amendment is incidental to, or consequential on, a provision of an Act of 

the Assembly relating to budgetary procedures.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



23 

 

Clause 15 - Change of name of the Assembly etc: 

translation of references 

38. Clause 15 provides that if the Assembly changes its name then any 

reference in legislation, instruments and documents to the “National 

Assembly for Wales” is to be read as a reference to the new name. This saves 

having to change each reference to the “National Assembly for Wales” (of 

which there will be thousands).  

39. Assembly Acts are prepared bilingually and references to the Assembly 

and Commission will be in Welsh and English. However, clause 15 does not 

address the issue of legislation, instruments and documents that refer to 

“Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru”. The amendment clarifies that any 

references in legislation, instruments and documents to “Cynulliad 

Cenedlaethol Cymru” is also to be read as a reference to the new name, in 

Welsh. 

40. The same issues arises with regard to any change in the name of the 

“National Assembly for Wales Commission” and “Acts of the National 

Assembly for Wales”; they are also addressed in the amendment. 

41. Further, the heading to the section inserted in the Government of Wales 

Act 2006 by clause 15 is “translation of references”. The amendment 

changes the heading to “consequential provision”, which is more appropriate 

given the overall effect of clause 15 and avoids confusion between legal 

translation (i.e. consequential provisions) and linguistic translation of 

references. 

Text of the clause as amended 

15 Change of name of the Assembly etc: translation of references 
(1) After section 150 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 insert— 

 
“150A Change of name of the Assembly etc: consequential provision translation of references 
(1) Subsection (2) applies if an Act of the Assembly, or subordinate legislation made under an Act of 
the Assembly, changes the name of— 

(a) Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, 
(b) the National Assembly for Wales, 

 (c) Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, 
(d) the National Assembly for Wales Commission, 
(e) Deddfau Cynulliad Cymru, or 
(f) Acts of the National Assembly for Wales. 
 

(See paragraph 7(2)(a)(i) and (xii) and paragraph 7(2)(c)(i) of Schedule 7B.) 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



24 

 

(2) Unless the context requires otherwise, a reference to Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, the National 
Assembly for Wales, Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, the National Assembly for Wales 
Commission, Deddfau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru or an Act of the National Assembly for Wales 
(as the case may be) in— 

(a) any enactment (including any enactment comprised in or made under this Act) or 
prerogative instrument, or 
(b) any other instrument or document, is to be read as, or as including, a reference to the 
new name in Welsh or English (as the case may be).” 

(3) In section 158 of that Act (interpretation), in subsection (2), after “116C(2)” insert “, 150A(2)”. 

 

Text of proposed amendments and explanatory notes 

Amendment 1 

Clause 15, page 14, line 3, leave out “translation of references” and insert “consequential provision”. 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment replaces “translation of references” with “consequential provision”, to reflect the 

overall effect of clause 15. 

Amendment 2 

Clause 15, page 14, line 5, at end insert –  

“Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru,” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment clarifies that any references in legislation, instruments and documents to “Cynulliad 

Cenedlaethol Cymru” is also to be read as a reference to the new name, in Welsh. 

Amendment 3 

Clause 15, page 14, line 6, at end insert –  

“Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru,” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment clarifies that any references in legislation, instruments and documents to 

“Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” is also to be read as a reference to the new name, in 

Welsh. 

Amendment 4 

Clause 15, page 14, line 7, at end insert – 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



25 

 

“Deddfau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru, or” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment clarifies that any references in legislation, instruments and documents to “Deddfau 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” is also to be read as a reference to the new name, in Welsh. 

Amendment 5 

Clause 15, page 14, line 11, after “to”, insert “Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru,” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment provides that if the Assembly changes its name then any reference in legislation, 

instruments and documents to the “Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” is to be read as a reference to 

the new name. 

Amendment 6 

Clause 15, page 14, line 12, after first “Wales,” insert “Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru,” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment provides that if the Assembly changes its name then any reference in legislation, 

instruments and documents to the “Comisiwn Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” is to be read as a 

reference to the new name. 

 

Amendment 7 

Clause 15, page 14, line 12, after “Commission,” insert “, Deddfau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment provides that if the Assembly changes its name then any reference in legislation, 

instruments and documents to “Deddfau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru” is to be read as a reference 

to the new name. 

 

Amendment 8 

Clause 15, page 14, line 17, after “name”, insert “in Welsh or English (as the case may be).” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment clarifies that the clause applies to any new names listed in the clause be they in 

English or Welsh. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



26 

 

Clause 16 - Welsh rates of income tax: removal of 

referendum requirement 

42. The Bill provides for the transfer of income tax varying powers to the 

Assembly by order, without prior consultation with either Welsh Ministers or 

the Assembly. As a matter of principle, such a transfer should occur only 

with the Assembly’s agreement. 

43. The proposed amendment seeks to give the National Assembly for 

Wales an appropriate role in the commencement of its function of setting 

income tax rates for Welsh taxpayers. 

44. Previously, the trigger for such a transfer would have been a 

referendum, signalling the consent of the Welsh people. Under the Wales Act 

2014, this new function would subsequently come into force when the 

Treasury so decides. The Treasury order bringing the provisions into force 

would not be subject to any Parliamentary or Assembly procedure. This is 

normal for commencement orders but it appears inappropriate for the 

Assembly to have no control over when it acquires these important new 

functions, which are linked to other elements of the funding settlement for 

Wales. 

45. The amendments would make the Treasury power conditional on 

Assembly consent. Consent would be given by way of resolution, rather than 

by way of a procedure for the scrutiny of subordinate legislation. A 

resolution procedure is more flexible and agile, and less of a departure from 

the normal position whereby commencement orders do not go through a 

scrutiny procedure. 

46. Assembly consent is proposed only to the commencement of the main 

income-tax-related powers, contained in sections 8 and 9 of the Wales Act 

2014. The Secretary of State will retain the power to bring into force 

provisions that would link the new income-tax rates with social security 

benefits, and the Treasury would retain unfettered power to bring into force 

certain subsidiary provisions concerning the definition of a Welsh taxpayer 

for the purposes of income tax. Both these sets of provisions would 

necessarily have to come into force at the same time, or after, main income-

tax provisions for which Assembly consent would be needed as a result of 

the amendments.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



27 

 

Text of the clause as amended 

16 Welsh rates of income tax: removal of referendum requirement  

(1) The Wales Act 2014 is amended as follows. 

(2) Omit— 

(a) section 12 and Schedule 1 (referendum about commencement of  

income tax provisions), 

(b) section 13 (proposal for referendum by Assembly), and 

(c) the italic heading before section 12. 

(3 )In section 14 (commencement of income tax provisions etc if majority in  

favour)— 

(a) omit subsection (1); 

(b) in the heading omit “etc if majority in favour”; 

(c) after subsection (3), insert – 

“(3A) No order is to be made under subsection (2) unless the Assembly has 

signified its consent to its making by passing a resolution to that effect.” 

(4) In section 23 (reports on the implementation and operation of Part 2) omit subsection 

(8). 

(5) In section 29 (commencement)— 

(a) in subsection (2)(b) for “referendum-related” substitute “income tax”; 

(b) in subsection (4)— 

(i) for ““referendum-related” substitute ““income tax”; 

                                           (ii) omit “(commencement if majority in favour at referendum)”. 

 

Text of proposed amendment and explanatory notes 

Clause 16, page 14, line 31, at end insert –  

“(c) after subsection (3), insert – 

“(3A) No order is to be made under subsection (2) unless the Assembly has signified 

its consent to its making by passing a resolution to that effect.” 

Explanatory notes 

The amendment introduces a requirement for the Assembly to give consent by resolution before an 

order to commence its functions relating to setting income tax rates can be made.  

Tudalen y pecyn 40



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 41

Eitem 4Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vii o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys unrhyw faterion i’w codi o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3
	3 Papurau i'w nodi
	Papur 3
	Papur 4
	Papur 5 (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Tystiolaeth mewn perthynas â Bil Cymru

